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Great LaKes
fisherman
recalls
rugged
winters at sea

By BARS AARDEMA
Chronicla 310} writae

Fishing.

The word conjures up visions of lazy afternoons on
4 quiet litzle pond, summertime battles with feisty
salmon on the Big Lake, and easy comradaship
among {olks tracking bobbers aloag channel walls,

But it's winter now, and winter — not summes — is
tae time to {lsh for profitable returns, says oid-time
commercial fisherman Floyd Grover,

GROVER, 30, who fished the waters of Laka Michi-
gan out of Wilte Lake for years with hig brotaer
Hallard “Jim" Grover has vivid memories of those
Umes,

The Brothers fished Into the winter months, as long
as they could find or break into open water,

“Winter nad the best money-making months,” sald
Grover, “The coid wasn't 30 much, but you bad ta
buck the ice.”

1t was about this time of year, d-some years ago

' and befare the Grovers had their own boat, that Floyd

Grover had to walk a mile to shore on the ice after the
boat be was crewing got stuck during a blizzard. Thac

¢ kind of memory isn't one that s lost aver time if

you're part of a family whose life is the lake.

“We zot caught out,” Grover said. “A blizzard hit.
The barbor closed and we dad to'stay out.”

“THEY WERE gooe 25 hours,” recalled his wife.
Margaret, 2 woman who with her children worried
.mdhznd watched until her fisherman was home sach
aight.

o the days befors ship-to-shore radio, the fats of
Great Lakes fishermen was in question until their
tugs appearsd on the horizon at the ead of the day.
The family recalls Whita Lake lighthouse keeper
William Bush keep an eye out for the arex
commercial fishermen, often blowing the harbor’s fog
horn to guide them in.

During that 13208 blizzard, Grover was the youn-

gest on a {ishing boat owned by Harvey Nedeau, 5o he  SRe

was slected to bear the message of the crew’s pligat
o someone on shore.

“We were down pear Elks Park,” Grover said. “We
Bad just a lttle coal, barely enough to keep a fire go-
ing. The boat was kind of crippled. There was ice 9
the tiller 3nd it was impossibie to steer under our own
power.

“l TOOK THE message ashore in the aftarnoon,
walking down to Grand Haven. The next day an air-
plane came and dropped a bag of coal 9n the ice. They

ut bacon and bread and some other stuff in chere t00,

@ ice was like pavement. There was no daager to
walk on it

Anotaar irapped boat, the Indlan, was withia sight
of Nedeau's Helen N, that day The Indian was closer
to the still-open shipping lane so its crew was provid-
ed_:*.m a bot meal by a passing car ferry, Grover
sau

The ordeai endad whes the Helen N. was towed into
hardor, iis tiller 3tiil frozea tight

Even after that chilly axperience, Grover decided
to stick 9y the sea. [n 1923, Grover and his brother
started their own cial fishing busi

"YOU HAVE to have some brasks" he said. “To
#art It was pretty skinny (but) we wers on our leet
E-kfady ‘221 things tightened up during World War

“Thern are droughts in the sea as well as on land,”
said his daugheer, Kataryn Wackernagei.

Floyd Grover passed on a legacy of work and mem-
aries to his children. Mrs. Wackernagel recails
working with cousins, untangliog nets in the net shed
\kat stood deside Whits Lake Channel. The girs also
had %o “ciear the books" quring summer moatis when
lake trout fed near the surface and hooks, rather than
nets, weara thetr fathers’ tools.

"They had to be clearsd just 50, 30 when you wouald
put them out they would sing a listle.” said her facher.
As he spoke Ris hands flew through the motions of
baiting hooks that were spaced oa lines 1 rod apars.
The hook line was rigged to feed sut over the adge of
‘he J0at an 2 rolier. There were 400 hooks @ 3 A0x.
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and the fishermen usad two to :hree Soxes per irip,

sai¢ Grover's son, Floyd Jr.

THE BAIT WAS chubs, a small fish which the fish-
ermen 7ad nested cioser 10 shora. They sicked up the
2hubs ia the early morning, then set out for the day.
On the way back in, the crew was kept busy gutting
their catch, pregaring it for shipment o Chicago and
ather markets.

T3e vourger Grover joined his father and uncle on
tae Graver Brotaers fishing tug whea be was only 11

“I had to stand 21 a Yox ta se= out the pilot Kouse
#indows,” 3aid Floyd Jr. “The first marning out dad
showed me how the compass warkad. It #as fun at
first, but it didn' take long for it 19 Secoma work. [
ad to steer all sver the laka,"

THE ELDER Grover is a lifaiang Wes: Michigan
rasident, Born on a farm in Skeity, he cecalls his
{ather’s summer boat livery an Stony Lake. As a
Youeg man 22 worked for a time in 3 machine shop,
but decided the open waters wers mora appealing
than :ndoor work, With 2is brother. and later wita
taeir sons, the Grovers fished commercially out af
Waite Lake for several decades.

Their fiest d0at was the Signora. Graver Srothers
%4s the nama of thelr second boat. The (933 wnoden
tug ¥as the first they commissioned aad even hefged
buiid on the site 9f the present Wesley Marme Service
and Shear Water Boac Shop on W Laka.

The first of the Grovers' boats ware followed 3y all-
steed tugs. The Maggle Lynn. named aiter Floyd and
Hailard's wives, Margarst aad Lana. wasg ane; Geover
Brothers [T was the ather. The staei tugs have been
<opiad since by other 30al butlders and 3l are in use
on tae Great Lakes.

‘Taey were rugged and very seawarthy " 3ai¢ Mrs.
Wiackernagel
“THEY HANDLED gaad. ' said Craver. “We used

ynu ad a Bueger Boat buill v Las Surzer
wae, Wis tand o Settivabesyg sngine
gk

YU wern ac
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The seaworthiness of the vessels was tested in win-
ter squalls, lcs-clogged channeis and frozen depths.

Fishlog areas and techriques varied with the
seasons, Bobber hooka ware used from lats May until
June or July. 3y mid-August. Lhe fiskerman set nets
for trout near a r2ef ia ihe muddie of the lake. [t was
in again from September until October. sesking white
{ish near tae beach "as ziose as you could, in 3ix feet
of water and out, Just adout scraping the Jottom.”
said Floyd Je,

WINTER RUNS 290k *a3e Grovers 3ack to the mid-
dle of Lake Mickigan where the plentiful trout
schooled in 130-foot deptas after fall spawning runs.
To find ust the right scot avery time, “you would set
a course and ¥ou wouid scund,” 3aid Grover. A chunk
of iran attached to 3 c%ed in fathoms was the
soundiog tooi that told saermen how deep they
were.

They set three or four 3angs of nets during the win-
ter when the trout raa (n (e deep water. Each gaag
was three miles long,

Grover recalls meetinz Wiscansia flshermen near
the raaf, the Wisconsin crews stayiag west af the reef,
and the Michigan fishermen staving sast of It, saca
within thair respective staiz boundaries.

GROVER ackaowledzes his wifa's and daugalec's
concerns about he dangers of working on a hard,
meeal, siippery deck in 3. ©ad3 of wind and weather, z
He went overboard once. gradoing a fish box as he
went to caep um afloat. Another lime the nets got
tangled in tae rudder and %e 2ad jump inco the lake to
clear them.

“When [ was thinking 70w far [t was to the Jottom,
[ got kind of scarea,” he saic.

Greaver sold out to his brother and nepaew in 1947,
He 3aid poilution took c3rs of much of the lake trout
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CELEBRATE WWHITE LAKE

FISHERMAN'S VILLAGE

It's all been cleared and alterad, but our walk will take us from Grover Brothers
Fishery at the White Lake end of the pier past the Fisherman'’s Houses, the Life Saving
Station and on to rne Laks Michigan shorelines where Cassius Dowling long occupied a
small cottage.

For ma_'ly years, centerad around the Life Saving Stadon (1887} and the White
River Lighthouse (1873), were the houses and surbuildings that creatad Fisherman's
Village. Stre"ched out along the north chanmel wall, chese buildings rurned their backs
o the natural old channel outlet to White Lake and fronted on the new channel
constructed in 1870. The dming of the White Lake Channel couldn’t have been bettar
for the lumbering communides of Montague and Whitehall, for the grear Chicago firs
was in October 1871, The rebuilding of Chicago creared a great demand for Michigan
lumber and brought two decades of prosperity to White Lake residents.

In the 1890, aftar the giant ees had disappeared and the mills had closed,
V-’hlte Lake resﬁents tumed to promoting their scenic resources and warer land
amenities as a means of economic survival. The era of “White Lake the Beautiful” had
begun mr.h tmmst a.nd :ottage owners enjoying the pleasures of scenic White Lake.

Smc“ the 186!3’5 members of the Irish colony at the mouth had bee'l selling lake
trout, wh.tteﬁsh, and sturgeon to the residents of the lumbering commumty Fishing as a
source of income took on new direcdons in the 1920's when the Grover Brothers, John
Fisher and other residents docked their fishing boars along the old wooden pier channel
wall. Grover Brothers had a successive line of boats beginning with the Slgmra (1928),
Grover Brothers (1935), Maggie Lynn (1941} and Grover Brothers II built in 1945. The
1940's were a time of abundant carches with a record catch of 5,600 pounds of dressed
fish in one day. We'll explain more of the functions and the design of this fishing village
as we tour the north channel wall. The 1989 Muskegoen Chronicle article on Floyd
Grover tells the Grover Brothers story very well.

Let’s look at some old photograp'hs and do some exploring.

Roger P. Scharmer
AST_A *‘-"..ICP
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White Lake Life Saving Station 1878

Scon after 1875 a life saving s@ction was built rext to and about the center of
the north pier of the channel, For years it had a craw of saver or eight men, There
were living quarcters for the captain and sleeping quarzers fur the crew, ard later
small houses were built near the pier, An inclined rurwzy was built from the water
up to the station for launching boats, During the operation of the station men patrolled
tha beach morth and south of the pier with lanterns at right. There was an auxiliary
building or large boat house painted white whic h stood almost at the edge of Lake
Michigan a few hundred feet north of the suuth pier where a large life saving boat
was stored [n case of storm and not being able to get out of the channel, For years
pars were the only power and latar inboard motors wers used, The south piar was
a double decker, could be used for waliking at pier leve! or in cass of storm alevated
walking, with a light located at the weast end of the gie, In 1913 alectric lights re-
piaced the kerosena lizhts both at the lighthcuse and-at the ‘end of the pier,

Captain William Robinson was the fizst lighthouse keeper {rom l875-1915.
William Bush, a son-in-law, was assis:m: and siceseded Rodinson until 194t when it
was closed, : F i :

Later the lighthouse was used as .1v1-1g q.xarters a..“ the lights were electrically
operated and serviced by the Muskegon Coast Guard, - Thé lighthousa has'later been
sold to Fruitland Township for $6,250 perhacs o be used as a museum,’

In 1946 the Coast Guard Station was put up for sale.,

R, John DeFraga was White Lake Hirbor Master (ror then on for awhile and
kad a 36 foot life boat and a 26 foot sur? deat, both seif bailing and self righting, The
building was finally sotd and méved to the chcmr'a fot a- ,bort distance away, & new
residence was built in its place by Hallard Grover:who is-a fisherman, This has now
been torn down and Natura! Resources box.g'v the Grover property, Montague owns
Medbury Park here, -—Resenrc'u oy W, L, Llplm
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